
 

 
 

  
  Shropshire Council 

Legal and Democratic Services 
Guildhall, 

Frankwell Quay,  
Shrewsbury  
SY3 8HQ 

   
Date:   30 January 2026 

 
 
Committee:  

Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date: Monday, 9 February 2026 
Time: 10.00 am 
Venue: The Council Chamber, The Guildhall, Frankwell Quay, Shrewsbury, SY3 8HQ 

  
You are requested to attend the above meeting. The Agenda is attached 

 
There will be some access to the meeting room for members of the press and public, but 
this will be limited. If you wish to attend the meeting please email 

democracy@shropshire.gov.uk to check that a seat will be available for you.  
 

Please click here to view the livestream of the meeting on the date and time stated on the 
agenda 
 

The recording of the event will also be made available shortly after the meeting on the 
Shropshire Council Youtube Channel Here 

 
Tim Collard 
Service Director – Legal, Governance and Planning 

 
Members of Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

David Minnery (Chair) 
Dawn Husemann (Vice-Chair) 
Ed Bird 

Rosemary Dartnall 
Gary Groves 

Malcolm Myles-Hook 

Chris Naylor 
Charles Shackerley-Bennett 
Jon Tandy 

Beverley Waite 
Sam Walmsley 

 
 

Your Committee Officer is:  
 
Ashley Kendrick Democratic Services Officer   

Tel:   01743 250893 
Email:   ashley.kendrick@shropshire.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

mailto:democracy@shropshire.gov.uk
https://www.youtube.com/user/ShropshireCouncil/featured
https://www.youtube.com/user/ShropshireCouncil/streams


 

 

AGENDA 
 
1  Apologies  

 

 
2  Disclosable Interests  

 
Members are reminded that they must declare their disclosable pecuniary 
interests and other registrable or non-registrable interests in any matter being 

considered at the meeting as set out in Appendix B of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct and consider if they should leave the room prior to the item being 

considered. Further advice can be sought from the Monitoring Officer in advance 
of the meeting. 
 

 
3  Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 19 January 2026. 
 

 
4  Public Question Time  

 
To receive any questions from members of the public.  Deadline for notification 
is 12 noon on Tuesday 3 February 2026. 

 
 

5  Member Question Time  

 
To receive any questions of which members of the Council have given 

notice.  Deadline for notification is 12 noon on Tuesday 3 February 2026. 
 

 
6  Financial Monitoring Report Quarter 3 2025/26  

 

To scrutinise financial monitoring at Quarter 3 and identify issues that may 
require further investigation by an Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
REPORT TO FOLLOW 
 

 
7  Performance Monitoring Report Quarter 3  2025/26 (Pages 5 - 20) 

 
To scrutinise Performance at Quarter 3 and identify issues that may require 
further investigation by an Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
8  Financial Strategy 2026/27 - 2030/31  

 
To receive and consider the Financial Strategy 2026/27 - 2030/31, to be known 

in future as “Draft 2026/27 General Fund budgets and Medium Term Financial 
Plan 2026-2031”. 
 

REPORT TO FOLLOW 
 

 
9  Fees and Charges 2026 - 2027  

 

A review of the proposed changes to the draft fees and charges for 2026/27 in 
light of the Fees & Charges Policy approved by Cabinet on 3/12.  The proposed 

charges will form part of the budget setting and Council Tax setting for 2026/27. 
 
REPORT TO FOLLOW 

 
 

10  Partnership Working Task & Finish Group  

 
To receive an update further to Phase Two of the Partnership Working Task and 

Finish Group investigations. 
 

REPORT TO FOLLOW 
 
 

11  Work Programme (Pages 21 - 24) 

 

To consider proposals for the Committee’s work programme 2025 – 2026, 
attached 
 

 
12  Date of Next Meeting  

 
To note that the next meeting is scheduled to take place on 8 June 2026. 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 Committee and Date 

 
Transformation and 
Improvement Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 
 

9 February 2026 

 
TRANSFORMATION AND IMPROVEMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
Minutes of the meeting held on 19 January 2026 
In The Council Chamber, The Guildhall, Frankwell Quay, Shrewsbury, SY3 8HQ 

10am 
 

Responsible Officer:    Ashley Kendrick Democratic Services Officer 

Email:  ashley.kendrick@shropshire.gov.uk      Tel:  01743 250893 
 
Present  

Councillor David Minnery (Chair) 

Councillors Dawn Husemann (Vice-Chair), Ed Bird, Rosemary Dartnall, Malcolm Myles-
Hook, Chris Naylor, Charles Shackerley-Bennett, Jon Tandy, Beverley Waite and 
Sam Walmsley 

 
In attendance 

Councillor Heather Kidd - Leader, Councillor Roger Evans - Portfolio Holder for Finance, 
Councillor Ruth Houghton – Portfolio Holder for Social Care (via Teams), Councillor Andy 
Hall – Portfolio Holder for Children & Education (via Teams), Councillor Greg Ebbs (Chair 

of CIL Task and Finish Group)  
Tanya Miles - Interim Chief Executive, Rachel Robinson - Executive Director for Public 
Health, Mannie Ketley – Finance Director (Deputy S151) (via Teams), Duncan Whitfield – 

Interim Director for Finance for Improvement, Claire Braddock – Overview & Scrutiny 
Officer, Tom Dodds – Scrutiny Manager, Amanda Holyoak – Committee Services Team 

Leader, Ashley Kendrick – Democratic Services Officer. 
 
44 Apologies  

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Gary Groves and James Walton, Executive 

Director (S151). 
 
45 Disclosable Interests  

 
No declarations were received. 

 
46 Minutes of Previous Meeting  

 

The Chairman proposed an amendment to the minutes to read: 
 

“One public question had been received from John Palmer regarding Exceptional 
Financial Support (EFS). A copy of the question and the response from the Chairman can 
be found on the webpage for the meeting.  

  
The Executive Director (S151) provided further information which can be found in the 

recording of the meeting.” 
 Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes of the Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 19 January 2026 

 

 
 
Contact: Ashley Kendrick Democratic Services Officer on 01743 250893 2 

 

RESOLVED: 
 

That subject to the amendment, the minutes of the meeting held on 1 December 2025 
were approved. 

 
47 Public Question Time  

 

There were no public questions. 
 
48 Member Question Time  

 
There were no members’ questions. 

 
49 Draft Financial Strategy 2025/26 - 2029/30  

 
The Finance Director presented an overview of the draft budget, highlighting a significant 
shortfall in resources, applications for exceptional financial support (£71.4m for 25/26 and 

£130m for 26/27), and the impact of government funding reductions. The report included 
details on budget pressures, savings targets, and benchmarking reviews. 

 
In response to a query, the Finance Director offered to remove the internal references if 
needed to improve clarity around unachieved savings and what they relate to. 

 
Concerns were raised about optimism bias, noting that previous savings were not 

achievable and questioning the evidence-based changes made to the transformation 
programme to ensure future savings targets are realistic, especially given staffing 
reductions. In response, the Chief Executive emphasised the need to remove optimism 

bias from budgeting, referencing recommendations from the corporate peer challenge. 
The budget for 26/27 would exclude savings without a plan and ensure service areas have 

realistic budgets based on available information, aiming to stabilise the Council's finances 
and reserves. The next 12 months would focus on stabilising the budget, with future years 
dedicated to building capacity for true transformation and sustainable change, supported 

by the exceptional financial support application.  
 

The Chair indicated that the question of responsibility for unachieved savings would be 
addressed in a future separate review as agreed in the committee's work plan. 
 

Members requested a detailed breakdown of borrowing costs for past and future years 
which the Finance Director agreed to circulate after the meeting. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the committee supported the MTFS recommendations progressing to Cabinet. 
 
50 Capital Strategy 2026/27 – 2030/31 - In-Year Review  

 
The Finance Director presented an update on the capital programme and strategy, 

outlining the review of priority schemes, the principles guiding capital investment, and the 
need for an accelerated and independent review of Council assets. 

 

Page 2



Minutes of the Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 19 January 2026 

 

 
 
Contact: Ashley Kendrick Democratic Services Officer on 01743 250893 3 

 

Members expressed concern about the potential for 'fire sales' of assets due to 
accelerated disposal requirements. Members were assured that an independent review 

will be conducted to avoid rushed sales and to ensure assets are either generating income 
or disposed of efficiently, considering historical and maintenance factors. 

 
Questions were raised about the comprehensiveness of the Council's asset register and 
the cost of due diligence. It was confirmed that while an asset register existed, it required 

enhancement for informed decision-making, and that due diligence will be conducted in-
house where possible, with external support used selectively and time-limited. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the committee supported the recommendations in the report and agreed to forward 
them to Cabinet for decision. 

 
51 Work Programme  

 

i) Members received an update on the progress of the Community Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL) Task and Finish Group. The group requested an expansion of the Terms of 

Reference to allow full examination of the entire SIL system, not just allocation. 
 

Members agreed this was necessary to understand the full picture and support 

strategic use of CIL. 
 
RESOLVED:  
 

To approve the request to widen the terms of reference. 

 
ii) Members then received an update from the Partnerships Task and Finish Group. 

Members noted that Workshops had been held with Bridgnorth and nearby 
parishes, with further sessions planned for Ludlow and a northern rural cluster. 

 

The Chair warned the committee that the terms “partnership” and “devolution” were 
being incorrectly conflated by the public and some parishes, which risked 

undermining the important work on future partnership arrangements. She requested 
that scrutiny establish a separate Task and Finish Group specifically for reviewing 
the devolution process, with its own membership and remit. This would allow the 

Partnerships working group to stay focused and avoid mixed expectations. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That a proposal to create the separate Task & Finish Group would be added to the 

agenda for 9 February. It was also agreed that a letter would be sent to members 
explaining the distinction between partnership work and devolution. 

 
 
52 Date of Next Meeting  

 
Members noted that the next meeting was scheduled for Monday 9 February 2026. 

 

Page 3



Minutes of the Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 19 January 2026 

 

 
 
Contact: Ashley Kendrick Democratic Services Officer on 01743 250893 4 

 

 
Signed  (Chairman) 

 

 
Date:  

  

 
 

Page 4



Performance Monitoring Q3 2025/26 

Contact:  Rachel Robinson Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk  1 

 

 

 Cabinet 11th February 
2026 

 Item 
 
 
 
 
 
Public 

 

    
 

Q3 2024/25 Performance Report 

Responsible Officer: Rachel Robinson 

email: rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk Tel:  01743 258918 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder): Cllr Heather Kidd - Leader 

 
 

1. Synopsis 
 
The Shropshire Plan clarifies our vision and priorities, aligning our resources to deliver 
positive outcomes for our people, businesses and communities. Delivery of our 
outcomes is measured through the developing Performance Management Framework, 
demonstrating progress to date.  

 
2. Executive Summary 

 

2.1. The Shropshire Plan (TSP) 2022 to 2025 was created to clarify Shropshire 
Council’s vision, priorities and strategic objectives. These objectives are the 
outcomes we aim to achieve within our available financial envelope. The 
Shropshire Plan is structured around four key priorities: Healthy People, Healthy 
Economy, Healthy Environment and Healthy Workforce. We monitor our success 
and understand delivery of our strategic objectives within each ‘Healthy’ through a 
suite of Key Performance Indicators (our performance framework), which forms the 
basis of this report. 
 

2.2. This performance report covers the third quarter of the 2025/26 financial year 
(October to December 2025). Performance is reported on an exception basis, 
where performance may not be meeting targets. 

 

2.3. The interactive The Shropshire Plan Performance Dashboard is the main source 
of performance information enabling greater insight, transparency and scrutiny of 
the Council’s performance and delivery of its outcomes. This visualises each KPIs 
trends and comparison to other local authorities where possible. This report 
should be viewed in conjunction with the dashboard- see the ‘New Data This 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk
mailto:rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiMTcwZTY1MWYtYmM1Mi00M2JhLWIwNTctOTE3NjJiYWIwZjMxIiwidCI6ImI2YzEzMDExLTM3MmQtNDM4Yi1iYzgyLTY3ZTRjNzk2NmU4OSIsImMiOjh9


Performance Monitoring Q3 2025/26 

Contact:  Rachel Robinson Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk  2 

 

Quarter’ page. A guide on navigating the dashboard is included in the 
Appendices. 

 

 
 

 
2.4. The Corporate Plan is undergoing its refresh and the plan for 2025/26-2026/27 was 

considered by Council in December 2025. Subject to Council approval, the 
performance management framework (PMF) will need to be reviewed and 
strengthened to align with our strategic objectives to ensure we are an evidence-
led and performance-managed council. A full list of the current KPIs can be found 
in the Appendix. 

 

2.5. This Performance Report complements the Financial Outturn Report but provides 
a different perspective. We may therefore find that the position on KPIs is 
favourable, but that the finance position is adverse because the activity levels (the 
cost drivers) are higher than anticipated. As Shropshire Council continues to 
manage an unprecedented financial position, significant management action is 
required over the remainder of the financial year to ensure the Council's financial 
survival. This may involve scaling down initiatives, changing the scope, delaying 
implementation, or extending delivery timescales therefore potentially impacting on 
performance in some areas. 

 

Key Findings and context 
 

2.6. In Quarter 3 of 2025/26, a total of 36 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) have been 
updated in The Shropshire Plan Performance Dashboard. 7 of these KPIs are grey, 
meaning that they do not have a target set for various reasons, such as: 
information only indicators or the KPI definition has changed.  
 
Of the 29 newly reported KPIs with targets: 

 

• 69% (20 KPIs) are above their target (green).  

• 3% (1 KPI) of indicators were similar to their target (amber). 

• 28% (8 KPIs) are below their target and are showing as exceptions 
(red). The reasons for this are reported in the Additional Information section 
of this report. 
 

2.7. Healthy People: We continue to experience a significant number of requests for 
assessments for education, health and care plans for children with special 
educational needs and disabilities. Despite creating specialist teams and recruiting 
permanent staff, difficulty to achieve timeliness targets are due to factors which 

Page 6

mailto:Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiMTcwZTY1MWYtYmM1Mi00M2JhLWIwNTctOTE3NjJiYWIwZjMxIiwidCI6ImI2YzEzMDExLTM3MmQtNDM4Yi1iYzgyLTY3ZTRjNzk2NmU4OSIsImMiOjh9


Performance Monitoring Q3 2025/26 

Contact:  Rachel Robinson Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk  3 

 

include, late advice for assessment being available, increased complexity of cases, 
and insufficient resource to meet statutory timescales. The number of children 
overweight and obese in Shropshire continues to increase, with 1 in 4 reception 
aged children, and 1 in 3 Year 6 aged children overweight or obese. Support from 
the Early Help Team and timely delivery of targeted interventions remains high 
among our families this quarter, with a sustained high rate of closures preventing 
escalation of needs and future crisis. We are now proudly completing majority of 
children’s social care assessments within 45 days, better than the national rate and 
among our statistical neighbours. We continue to achieve a high rate of stability of 
placements for our looked after children, remaining above the national and 
statistical neighbour figures and ensuring these children enjoy a stable and settled 
homelife to support them to achieve the best possible outcomes. We also continue 
to maintain contact with majority of our care leavers to provide ongoing support and 
guidance. 

 

 
 
2.8. Healthy Environment: We continue to send a smaller proportion of waste to 

landfill and have improved our number of environmental permit inspections 
completed. The validity and accuracy of the KPI measuring the proportion of 
premises with access to gigabit broadband (HEn17) is being reconsidered. 

 

 
2.9. Healthy Economy: Shropshire Council’s Housing Service has significantly 

reduced the use of bed and breakfast (B&B) accommodation, more than halving 
the number of households in emergency accommodation this quarter compared to 
last quarter through strengthening homelessness prevention activity and increasing 
access to more suitable temporary accommodation. We continue to show strong 
economic performance in the county among measures for benefits and 
employment this quarter, with rates of households in receipt of universal credit and 
out of work claimants being favourable at approximately half that of regional and 
national rates. Shropshire residents pay is rising and remains similar to the national 
average however is rising at a slightly slower pace than nationally. Additionally, Job 
growth has also slowed in Shropshire in the most recent year. Planning 
applications continue to be delivered within target. Food hygiene compliance 
remains high, supporting a vibrant food, tourism and leisure sector 

 

Page 7

mailto:Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk


Performance Monitoring Q3 2025/26 

Contact:  Rachel Robinson Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk  4 

 

 

 
 

2.10. Healthy Organisation: We are receiving less compliments and more complaints 
from residents and customers this quarter. However, many complaints did not 
require formal investigation and were made anonymously via the portal. FOI 
compliance rates are improving however is still missing the target. Despite a 
reduction in the use of interim and agency staff and staff turnover rates, the council 
is experiencing rising rates of sickness absence, which is placing additional strain 
on remaining staff. 

 

 
 

2.11. In Quarter 3, 4 KPIs continue to be exceptions. Progress updates from officers can 
be found in the Additional Information section. 

 

 

3. Recommendations 
 

It is recommended that Cabinet:   
 

3.1. Note progress to date in achieving the outcomes of The Shropshire Plan, utilising 
the interactive Shropshire Plan Performance Dashboard 

 
3.2. Collectively review and align Shropshire’s Performance Management Framework  

and the associated suite of KPIs with the new administration’s priorities, Corporate 
Plan and the Local Government Outcomes Framework metrics. 

 

Report 
 

4. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 
 

4.1. The management of the Council’s Performance Management Framework is a key 
process in ensuring strategic risks are mitigated and the Council can carry out 
business as intended and planned for within TSP. 
 

Page 8

mailto:Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiMTcwZTY1MWYtYmM1Mi00M2JhLWIwNTctOTE3NjJiYWIwZjMxIiwidCI6ImI2YzEzMDExLTM3MmQtNDM4Yi1iYzgyLTY3ZTRjNzk2NmU4OSIsImMiOjh9


Performance Monitoring Q3 2025/26 

Contact:  Rachel Robinson Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk  5 

 

4.2. The management of key performance indicators is a key process to monitoring 
progress in the delivery of outcomes as set out in TSP. This provides insight into 
whether corrective action is required to bring performance back on track. 

 

4.3. The performance report and dashboard provide a high-level lens into the 
performance of Shropshire Council allowing for further targeted detail analysis to 
support the mitigation of any risks identified.  

 

4.4. Regular financial reporting is part of the governance and risk management 
approach within the Council ensuring that it delivers sustainable and value for 
money services as required under statute. Risk management continues to be an 
active part of this process, and Officers review potential risk and opportunity 
scenarios each month. The Council holds two finance related strategic risks 
regarding managing the current financial situation and so this remains under 
constant review to consider appropriate management action of the situation.  

 

4.5. The dashboard includes instructions for use and a feedback form is available for 
questions or feedback. Members have been shown how to use the dashboard, 
and the Business Intelligence and Insight team are available for training for new 
Members.  

 

4.6. Monitoring will be in place using the dashboard so any issues can be resolved in a 
timely manner.  

 

4.7. Ultimately, the Council must risk assess the delivery of strategic objectives within 
TSP and adjust, accordingly, to ensure an acceptable balance of outcomes are 
achieved at a strategic level. This may mean the prioritisation of some objectives 
over others to react to the evidence presented within the PMF. It may not be 
possible to achieve optimal performance across all indicators and it may be 
necessary to oversee expected reductions in performance in some areas to 
remain within the overall financial envelope and ensure full focus is given to 
prioritised areas of activity by officers including significant management action 
required over the remainder of the financial year to ensure the Council's financial 
survival.  

 

5. Financial Implications 
 

5.1 Shropshire Council continues to manage unprecedented financial demands and a 
financial emergency was declared by Cabinet on 10 September 2025. The overall 
financial position of the Council is set out in the monitoring position presented to 
Cabinet monthly.  Significant management action has been instigated at all levels 
of the Council reducing spend to ensure the Council's financial survival. While all 
reports to Members provide the financial implications of decisions being taken, this 
may change as officers and/or Portfolio Holders review the overall financial 
situation and make decisions aligned to financial survivability. All non-essential 
spend will be stopped and all essential spend challenged. These actions may 
involve (this is not exhaustive):   
•  scaling down initiatives,   
•  changing the scope of activities,   
•  delaying implementation of agreed plans, or   
•  extending delivery timescales. 
 

Page 9

mailto:Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk


Performance Monitoring Q3 2025/26 

Contact:  Rachel Robinson Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk  6 

 

5.2  The performance report provides progress on key activity targets which will have 
correlation to financial performance 

 
5.3  It should be noted that positive improvement on activity may not necessarily  

correspond to financial improvement, and this should be drawn out in the narrative  
of the financial and performance reports. 
 

6. Climate Change Appraisal 
 
6.1. The performance report includes KPIs for Healthy Environment with measures for 

monitoring Shropshire Council’s direction of progress on climate change. 
 

6.2. Recommendations within the Climate Strategy and Action Plan Monitoring Report 2023 
were agreed by the Council on the 18th of July 2024, including two recommendations 
specific to key performance indicators which will be incorporated into the Shropshire Plan 
Performance Report for future reporting:  Specific carbon emission reductions by activity 
and Energy efficiency. 

 

6.3. Climate Change also has significant implications for Healthy People, a Healthy 
Economy and a Healthy Organisation and further work to develop additional KPIs, 
in partnership with the Climate Team will reflect this. There has been a reduction in 
size of the Climate Change team and as a result, future work programmes are 
being reviewed. Further indicators will be made available as new data becomes 
available to ensure that as high a percentage as possible of primary data collected 
is based on measured carbon emissions via a clear and transparent process such 
as carbon accounting, rather than estimating scope 3 emissions based on spend. 

 
6.4. Measuring emissions also provides a baseline for setting climate targets and 

deciding where to start reducing emissions. Repeating the measurement process 
annually allows Shropshire Council to track and report progress in a clear, 
transparent way to ensure that key stakeholders - members, regulators, 
employees, members of the public, other local authorities and system partners are 
informed about our collective climate action and impact. 

 

7. Background 
 
7.1. The focus of the Council in 2025/26 and the immediate future is necessarily 

directed at the delivery of a balanced budget, and is currently, therefore, the 
highest priority strategic objective within TSP balanced alongside protecting our 
most vulnerable children. 

 

7.2. Information on each KPI is presented within The Shropshire Plan Performance 
Dashboard, which is published on a quarterly basis on the Council’s website 
performance webpage. This includes performance status (red, amber, green -
currently reported based on variation from the target), trends and benchmarking 
information, where available. See the ‘Frequently Asked Questions’  to view 
thresholds for variation. A guide on navigating the dashboard is included in the 
Appendices.  
 

7.3. The approach being taken by Shropshire Council is progressive and in advance of 
many other authorities and this places us in a strong position to continually improve 
our approach to managing performance and ultimately providing evidence of our 
ability to deliver the outcomes set out in TSP. 

Page 10

mailto:Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiMTcwZTY1MWYtYmM1Mi00M2JhLWIwNTctOTE3NjJiYWIwZjMxIiwidCI6ImI2YzEzMDExLTM3MmQtNDM4Yi1iYzgyLTY3ZTRjNzk2NmU4OSIsImMiOjh9
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiMTcwZTY1MWYtYmM1Mi00M2JhLWIwNTctOTE3NjJiYWIwZjMxIiwidCI6ImI2YzEzMDExLTM3MmQtNDM4Yi1iYzgyLTY3ZTRjNzk2NmU4OSIsImMiOjh9
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiMTcwZTY1MWYtYmM1Mi00M2JhLWIwNTctOTE3NjJiYWIwZjMxIiwidCI6ImI2YzEzMDExLTM3MmQtNDM4Yi1iYzgyLTY3ZTRjNzk2NmU4OSIsImMiOjh9


Performance Monitoring Q3 2025/26 

Contact:  Rachel Robinson Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk  7 

 

 
7.4. The dashboard is designed to be a dynamic tool, continuously improving based on 

user feedback and emerging requirements. Feedback on the design and usability 
of the dashboard and performance webpage is welcomed. A feedback form is 
available for questions and queries, which are reviewed regularly with responses 
provided and published where appropriate alongside the dashboard. 
 

7.5. In July 2025, the Government published a new draft Local Government Outcomes 
Framework (LGOF), setting out a proposed structure for how central and local 
government might work together to measure progress on key public service 
outcomes. This includes 15 priority outcome areas to support more consistent, 
transparent monitoring of local performance over time. These will be underpinned 
by outcome metrics drawing from existing data sources to show how progress will 
be measured. The metrics have been delayed and are said to be published this 
year, and the LGOF team are developing the accompanying digital tool for launch 
later in the spring. 

 

7.6. The newly elected administration of Shropshire Council assumed office in May 2025. A 
thorough review of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), involving Portfolio Holders, relevant 
Members, Executive Directors, and Service Directors, is necessary to ensure alignment 
with the priorities of the new administration, the Local Government Outcomes Framework 
(LGOF), and the updated Corporate Plan. The complete list of current KPIs is provided 

 

8. Additional Information 
 

Improvements 
 

8.1. HEc18 - Reduction of households in B&B accommodation. The number of 
households living in B&B accommodation has more than halved since last quarter 
through strengthening homelessness prevention activity and increasing access to 
more suitable temporary accommodation. A great achievement by Shropshire’s 
Housing team. 
 

8.2. HP18 - % Assessment timeliness: within 45 working days. Our social work 
assessments timeliness has improved and we are now on target, completing 90% 
of assessments within 45 days. This has been due to continued performance 
monitoring and a refreshed focus on timeliness. Our aim is to sustain this rate as it 
is currently better than national (80%) and our statistical neighbour rates (86%). 
 

8.3. HEn6 - % household waste sent for re-use, recycling and composting. We are 
successfully sustaining our rate of recycling and meeting our target at 53% (July - 
Sep 2025). This KPI is reported a quarter in arrears and this quarter typically 
includes some of the highest volumes for garden waste due to it being the summer 
months. 

 

Exceptions  
 
There are 8 exceptions reported in Quarter 3: 

• 4 KPIs continue to be exceptions this quarter   

• 4 KPIs are new exceptions this quarter  
 

Page 11

mailto:Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk


Performance Monitoring Q3 2025/26 

Contact:  Rachel Robinson Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk  8 

 

 
 
(Source: The Shropshire Plan Performance Dashboard) 

Page 12

mailto:Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiMTcwZTY1MWYtYmM1Mi00M2JhLWIwNTctOTE3NjJiYWIwZjMxIiwidCI6ImI2YzEzMDExLTM3MmQtNDM4Yi1iYzgyLTY3ZTRjNzk2NmU4OSIsImMiOjh9


Performance Monitoring Q3 2025/26 

Contact:  Rachel Robinson Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk  1 

 

Table 1. Exceptions  
Provides progress updates from officers regarding continuing exceptions from last quarter, as well as newly identified exceptions for this 
quarter. Red dots indicate where a KPI is not meeting the target (exception) and green dots indicate where the KPI is meeting the target. 
 
Continuing exceptions 
 
KPI 
No. 

KPI name Q2 
2025/26 

Q3 
2025/26 

Progress update from Council officers 

HP31 % of EHCPs issued 
within 20 weeks 
(excl. exceptions) •  •  

As of December 2025, timeliness of EHCP’s 13.0%, down from 18.5% last quarter. Cabinet will 
recognise that this figure has consistently been underachieved throughout 2025. Despite positive 
recruitment and comprehensive training of the workforce, there remains an inequity between demand 
and capacity within the team. There has continued to be a steady decline in the timelines of EHCPs 
with an average of 41.6 weeks to issue, because of factors which include, late advice for assessment 
being available, increased complexity of cases, and insufficient resource to meet statutory 
timescales. Availability of Educational Psychology assessment advice is beginning to improve, along 
with Health and Social Care advice. CAMHS/ BEEU waiting lists, remain a challenge. Where the 
team could have finalised plans to improve some level of timeliness where assessment advice has 
been available, there remains insufficient provision available for a number of children and young 
people and therefore concluding an EHCP without the correct setting being named, simply protracts 
the outcome for the family and whilst bringing the EHCP assessment process to an end, does not 
conclude case work nor provide the required outcome.  As a result, EHCNAs have remained ‘open’ 
whilst on-going conversations are being had with families to secure the best possible outcome. In this 
respect, we are taking a view on this practice and will consider how we can best marry the two 
issues. There is growth modelling underway to address the insufficient staffing currently available, 
which will provide an injection of resource to support a recovery plan.   

 

P
age 13

mailto:Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk


Performance Monitoring Q3 2025/26 

Contact:  Rachel Robinson Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk  2 

 

Request for Assessment             

Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 2021 Total  

20 22 28 16 33 29 21 6 25 22 26 23 271 

Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 2022 Total  

35 41 50 35 53 31 49 13 31 35 77 63 513 

Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23  Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 2023 Total  

93 88 118 49 105 80 98 19 45 71 70 66 902 

Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24  Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 2024 Total  

74 63 80 93 78 52 91 12 49 78 57 65 792 

Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25 Oct-25 Nov-25 Dec-25 2025 Total  

80 93 81 57 75 73 86 30 47 64 82 56 824 

 

HP3 Percentage of high-
risk businesses, 
subject to a planned 
inspection, which 
were inspected to 
ensure compliance 

•  •  
This KPI relates to high risk food business inspections (Cat A and B). High risk food hygiene 
performance shows we have completed 57% of inspections at the end of Q3, missing the 
target of 75% but an improvement compared to Q2’s figure of 29%. The figure is calculated 
against the Q4 target and not all premises due are evenly distributed throughout the year. 
Due to staff vacancies and sickness we are slightly behind our Q3 performance. Increased 
poor compliance in premises means longer and more follow up in poorer performing 
premises. We remain confident of achieving 100% of our target by the end of March. 
 

HO13 Average number of 
days lost to sickness 
absence per year •  •  

Sickness absence for Q3 shows an increase compared to last quarter, up from 10.4 days to 
11.0 days lost per FTE. Available benchmarking data for 2024/25 shows a median average 
of 9.5 lost days per employee across all local authorities and 10.2 days lost for authorities in 
the West Midlands. The increase locally is largely attributable to an increase in absences 
related to coughs, colds and influenza, which was the 3rd reason for absence this quarter 
and saw an increase of 57% from last quarter alongside a 36% rise in other chest and 
respiratory-related absences. This pattern is expected during the autumn–winter period, 
given seasonal flu levels in the community. Absence due to stress has reduced slightly—by 
just over 7% from Q2—yet still accounts for 30% of all absence. On a positive note, 
musculoskeletal-related absences have decreased by almost 35% since last quarter. HR 
continues to deliver targeted, proactive interventions to address sickness absence, 
particularly long-term cases. However, it is too early to determine whether these initiatives 

P
age 14

mailto:Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk


Performance Monitoring Q3 2025/26 

Contact:  Rachel Robinson Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk  3 

 

are directly responsible for the reductions seen in stress and musculoskeletal absence. 
Future analysis will help us assess the effectiveness of our ongoing work.  

HO17 Responding to FOIs 
within statutory 
timescales (20 
working days) 

•  
             

 Overall compliance is improving, up from 55% in Q2 (Jul-Sep) to 63% in Q3 (Oct – Dec 
2025). However, this is still below our target of 100%. Comparison data for other authorities 
is not available. 
Planned improvements 

• Where possible, IGT is sending directly to teams due to respond and reducing the 
need for responses to be authorised by Service Directors. This gives teams longer 
to consider the response. 

• Greater awareness and guidance: i) IG in general is being reviewed as part of the 
NOM agreed by Leadership Board on 7 October 2025. Ii) A workshop specifically 
about FOI was given to SLF on 11 September. An Extranet is being developed to 
provide easy access to awareness tools and response templates. Iii) IGT 
approaches teams to support teams and raise awareness of how FOI impacts their 
service and discuss ways to make it more efficient. 

• Teams continue to be encouraged to publish as much information as possible where 
information is requested frequently or where they anticipate local interest and 
increased enquiries 

 

 
New exceptions this quarter 
 

KPI 
No. 

KPI name Q2 
2025/26 

Q3 
2025/26 

Progress update from Council officers 

HEc2 Reduce the 
workplace pay gap 
with the national 
average by 50% by 
2027 (Annual figure) 

 
- •  

 

This figure is reported annually, the 2024/25 figure was published during Q3 of 25/26. The 
workplace pay gap in the 2021 baseline year was 9.3%. The aim by 2027 is to reduce that 
gap by at least 50% to 4.6%. The target profile is to close the gap by 0.8% per year. 
Results from the ONS Annual Population Survey of Hours and Earnings for 2025 show the 
pay gap to be 11.2%, is higher than the figure of 9.10% in 2024 and continues to miss the 
target for the year of 6.1%. Workplace pay in Shropshire is £680.40 gross per week for full-
time workers compared with £766.60 in Great Britain. Workplace wages in Shropshire 
grew at a slower rate than they did nationally in the year to April 2025 (+2.6% compared 
with 5.0%).                                                                                                                                                                      
Mitigation comment - Macro-economic indicators like wage levels are affected by national 
and global economic trends that are outside the control of Shropshire Council. However, 
closing the gap between national and local wage levels remains a key priority of the 
Shropshire Economic Growth Strategy, and we are acting to mitigate external influences by 

P
age 15

mailto:Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk


Performance Monitoring Q3 2025/26 

Contact:  Rachel Robinson Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk  4 

 

encouraging inward investment to the county and by working with FE/HE/training providers 
to ensure business have access to the skilled workers they require. 

HP6 Reception: 
Prevalence of 
overweight (including 
obesity) – C09a 

- 

•  
 

This figure is reported annually, the 2024/25 figure was published during Q3 of 25/26. In 
2024/25, 24.8% of reception aged children in Shropshire were reported as overweight or 
obese, a rise compared to the previous year figure of 23.6% and remaining above the 
target of 21%. However we are statistically similar to the national (23.6%) and regional 
averages (24.4%) and rank mid table among our statistical neighbours. Work continues to 
reduce the prevalence of obesity in reception and year 6 aged children in the county. The 
Public Health Nursing service are piloting a Brilliant Bodies programme to support body 
positivity as well as a health assessment in reception and year 7. Open Access health 
visitor clinics have been implemented across the county to provide additional opportunities 
children for to be seen and offer support around feeding. The systemwide Healthier Weight 
strategy also continues to look to address the common themes that influence healthy 
weight. 

HP7 Year 6: Prevalence 
of overweight 
(including obesity)- 
C09b 

 
- •  

 

HO1 Number of 
compliments •  •  

92 compliments were received within quarter 3. This total is a 25% decrease when 
compared to the previous quarter (122) and is below the target of 112. Overall reasons 
may include: 
-Poor public perception of Shropshire Council 
-Customer response times and handling 
-Service pressures and staffing levels 
-Time to record and report compliments to the Complaints Officers 

P
age 16

mailto:Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk


Performance Monitoring Q3 2025/26 

Contact:  Rachel Robinson Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk  1 

 

Last quarter exceptions- progress update 
 

HEc18 Reduction of 
households in B&B 
accommodation •  •  

In Q3 25/26, there were 40 households in B&B accommodation, a significant reduction from 
the 100 households in Q2 25/26 and now encouragingly below the than the target of 60.  
Shropshire Council’s Housing Service has significantly reduced this through strengthening 
homelessness prevention activity and increasing access to more suitable temporary 
accommodation. This has been achieved through increased earlier intervention to prevent 
homelessness and the implementation of 4 new Temporary accommodation in-house 
schemes equating to over 100 bedspaces for single individuals.   This temporary 
accommodation enables the service to provide more intensive support and referrals / sign 
posting to key agencies such as mental health and substance misuse.  The schemes also 
enable support staff to work with residents on independent living skills such as cooking.  
This leads to improved outcomes for households, reduced costs for the council, and 
accommodation that better supports health, wellbeing and stability. 

HO11 Staff Turnover rate 
(%) •  •  

Staff turnover has reduced from 7.71% to 5.47% quarter on quarter, meaning it is now 
below the target of 7% which is positive. When looking at our non-Shires employees who 
left through voluntary reasons, over 56% had 2 or less years’ service and 76% had up to 5 
years’ service indicating that we are not retaining our newest recruits. 

HP14 Rate of deaths by 
suicide (per 100,000 
population) •  

No new 
data 

N/A 

HO19 Number of data 
breaches reported to 
the Information 
Commissioner 

•  •  
The ultimate goal and target would be no breaches and none which are reportable to the 
ICO. However, it’s appreciated this is a difficult or impossible target, which is why this is not 
rated RAG formally in the dashboard. 
 
In Q3, there were 6 breaches reported to the ICO, compared to 3 last quarter. In total, 70 
incidents reported to Information Governance in Q3, same as what was reported last 
quarter. 18 were found not to be personal data breaches, 52 Personal Data breaches and 6 
reported to the ICO. Benchmarking from other authorities is not available.  
 
Improvements: after each breach, IGT will look at the root cause and make 
recommendations to prevent a similar event occurring again. In most cases, procedures; 
awareness and training are in place, and the event has occurred due to human error. 
 .  

P
age 17

mailto:Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk


Performance Monitoring Q3 2025/26 

Contact:  Rachel Robinson Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk  2 

 

 A personal data breach is broadly defined as a security incident that has affected the 
confidentiality, integrity or availability of personal data. In short, there will be a personal data 
breach whenever any personal data is accidentally lost, destroyed, corrupted or disclosed; if 
someone accesses the data or passes it on without proper authorisation; or if the data is 
made unavailable and this unavailability has a significant negative effect on individuals. 
 The threshold for reporting to the ICO is: When a personal data breach has occurred, 
Information Governance will establish the likelihood of the risk to people’s rights and 
freedoms. If a risk is likely, the ICO must be notified; if a risk is unlikely, it doesn’t have to be 
reported. 
  
It is a subjective test in some ways and can depend on the personal circumstances of the 
person affected. The decision is made in conjunction with the service area in most cases.  
  
Action being taken to improve 
IGT has updated and added to the advice and guidance on the Intranet, including a team 
briefing sheet that we ask managers to include on team meetings if their areas experience a 
high number of incidents. Along with the offer to attend team meetings and discuss any 
issues. 
  
IGT are approaching other key areas, e.g. business support teams, to ensure they know 
what to do if there is an incident so that the right actions are taken asap to reduce the 
impact on those affected 
  
Currently statistics relating to breaches is only reported quarterly to IGLOO. The expectation 
is that this information is cascaded down through service directorates. We are aware that i) 
the cascade isn’t happening and ii) quarterly is not enough. 
It was therefore agreed at the last IGLOO – September 2025, that IGT will report to Service 
Directors monthly and give them a breakdown of the following. We haven’t started to do this 
yet we are just drafting a report template to be used. 

• the number of breaches 
• the level of risk associated with them (0 – incident but no actual breach; 1 – a low-

level breach; 2 – a medium level breach; 3 – serious breach reportable to the ICO)  
• the cause of the breach 
• link to best practice, advice and guidance on actions they may take to reduce the 

number 
• an offer to work directly with the team to discuss issues and talk through solutions. 

P
age 18

mailto:Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk


Performance Monitoring Q3 2025/26 

Contact:  Rachel Robinson Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk  1 

 

9. Conclusions 
 

9.1. The key performance pressure remains the delivery of a balanced budget which 
are detailed in the financial report.  
 

9.2. Considering the financial constraints, overall Q3 25/26 shows reasonable 
performance in achieving The Shropshire Plan and its objectives, with 72% of the 
29 newly updated indicators this quarter meeting or exceeding their target. 

 
 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

 

Local Member:  All 

Consultation with Local Member – Please consider the Local Member Protocol 
(see page E60 onwards of part 5 of the Constitution) and determine whether it is 
necessary to consult with the local member over the proposal set out in this report. 
This may not always be applicable (eg where the proposal affects all of Shropshire) 
but it should always be a consideration and in some cases a necessity so as to 
comply with the spirit of the Protocol. 

Appendices  

Appendix 1: KPI List 

The Shropshire Plan 

KPIs.xlsx
 

Appendix 2: A guide on navigating the dashboard (Video): 

The_Shropshire_Plan_Performance_Report_Walkthrough.mp4 

 
 

Page 19

mailto:Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk
https://shropshirecouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/inin/Performance/_layouts/15/stream.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2Finin%2FPerformance%2FShared%20Documents%2FThe%5FShropshire%5FPlan%5FPerformance%5FReport%5FWalkthrough%2Emp4&referrer=StreamWebApp%2EWeb&referrerScenario=AddressBarCopied%2Eview%2Ec5edf23d%2Dfd39%2D40c3%2Db980%2D6244af5a56d0


This page is intentionally left blank



Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee High-Level Work Programme – 2025/2026 

   

 

Date Topic  Responsible 
Officer 

Added to 
mod.gov 
Y/N 

All Member 
Teams 
Briefing  

Task and 
Finish 
Group 
followed by 
a report to 
Committee 

Report 
straight to 
committee 

Previous 
topic of 
review - an 
update 
against the 
action plan  

Sept 2025 Artificial Intelligence (AI) Billy Webster / 
David Baker  

  
12 Sept 2025 

   

Sept 2025 Annual Customer Feedback report Tim Collard / Barry 
Hanson / Sarah 
Dodds  

Yes    
 

 

Sept 2025 Financial Monitoring Report Quarter 1 
2025/26   

James Walton Yes     

Sept 2025 Performance Monitoring Report Quarter 1 
2025/26  

Billy Webster Yes     

Sept 2025 Financial Monitoring Period 4    James Walton  Yes     
        

T&F to 
commence 
Nov 2025 

CIL dispersion T&F Group Edward West    
 

Report date 
tbc 
 

 

        

17 Nov 2025 Financial Monitoring Report Quarter 2 
2025/26   

James Walton  Yes     

17 Nov 2026  Partnership Working T&F Group   James Walton / Tim 
Collard  

Yes     

  
To report at 
regular 
intervals 
throughout 
programme   

  

17 Nov 2025 Performance Monitoring Report Quarter 2 
2025/26    

Rachel Robinson Yes     

        

01 Dec 2025 Fees and Charges Pricing Policy  Lisa Henchey / 
Victoria Doran 

Yes     

01 Dec 2025 Financial Monitoring Period 7 James Walton Yes     

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 11



Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee High-Level Work Programme – 2025/2026 

   

 

Date Topic  Responsible 
Officer 

Added to 
mod.gov 
Y/N 

All Member 
Teams 
Briefing  

Task and 
Finish 
Group 
followed by 
a report to 
Committee 

Report 
straight to 
committee 

Previous 
topic of 
review - an 
update 
against the 
action plan  

01 Dec 2025 Improvement Plan  Tom Dodds / Paul 
Clarke 

Yes    




01 Dec 2025 Staff Bullying and Harassment Sam Collins-
Lafferty 

Yes     
 

        

19 Jan 2026 Draft Financial Strategy 2026/2027 – 
2030/2031 
 

James Walton Yes     

19 Jan 2026 Capital Strategy 2025/27 
 

James Walton Yes     

        

9 Feb 2026 Financial Monitoring Report Quarter 3 
2025/26 

Mannie Ketley       

9 Feb 2026 Financial Strategy 2026/2027 – 2030/2031 Mannie Ketley      

9 Feb 2026 Fees and Charges 2026/27 Mannie Ketley      

9 Feb 2026  Partnership Working T&F Group   Tim Collard Yes     

  
To report at 
regular 
intervals 
throughout 
programme   

  

       

June 2026 Performance Monitoring Report Q4 Rachel Robinson     

       

 

Other identified areas of interest from Committee discussions, including topics for briefings: 

Finance Scrutiny  Short Term Priority 

P
age 22



Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee High-Level Work Programme – 2025/2026 

   

 

Devolution Short Term Priority 

Scrutiny Review  Short Term Priority  

North-West Relief Road Short Term Priority  

Financial and Performance Monitoring of Adults and Children’s services  Medium Term Priority 

Use of consultants  Longer Term Priority 

 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	7 Performance Monitoring Report Quarter 3  2025/26
	11 Work Programme



